## THE PLAZA AT WOOD CREEK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION ANNUAL MEETING FRIDAY, AUGUST 2, 2024 – 10:00 A.M. CRESTED BUTTE & VIA ZOOM

Philip Miron called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. Alex confirmed notice of the meeting had been sent on July 20, 2024.

Present:	Sean Donovan	Unit 33
	Blaine McAnally	Unit 34
	James Reese	Unit 132
	Ann Beth Gellert	Unit 133
	Scott & Stephanie Pinkston	Units 231 & 232
	Scott & Mary Richards	Unit 235
	Gregory, Vitum Duo LLC	Unit 236
	Ian & Sonia Arnold	Unit 239
	Bud & Melissa Wheaton	Unit 333
	Michael James	Unit 334
	Gloria Sotolongo	Unit 335
	Allen & Cindy David	Unit 336
	Michael Pickerill	Unit 337
	Michael & Linda Englehard	Unit 338
	Philip & Janet Miron	Unit 339
	Kevin & Susan Atkinson	Unit 340
	Randy Pratt	Unit 431
	Julie Kiley	Unit 432
	Susan Gellert	Unit 433
	Shay Williams	Unit 438
	Thor Hoppess	Unit 531
	Bruce & Lisa Joss	Unit 532
	Terry & Debbie Moore	Unit 535
	Jody Helbling	Unit 536
	Allen & Sheri Devino	Unit 538
	Jill Linck	Unit 539
	David Rockett & John Schindler	Unit 540
	Lori Muecke	Unit 541
	Kim & Laurel Hansen	Unit 638
	Bob Berger & Shelley Mack	Unit 642
Proxy to Philip Miron	Susan Berkowitz	Unit 440
	Alex Summerfelt, Toad Property Management	

Kezia Bechard, Toad Property Management

Alex confirmed there was a quorum.

Thor Hoppess made a motion to approve the April 5, 2024 General Meeting minutes. Bud Wheaton seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Alex Summerfelt explained the large stucco project had gone well. The contractor, the Oaks Brothers, had finished the project early and no change orders had been submitted. That meant the Association had the money and the time to have the Oaks Brothers move onto the garage repair and painting prior to the Winter season.

The Board had approved the hiring of a photographer to take photographs of the exterior of the building in the Fall.

Some touchup work, general cleaning and window cleaning was underway. The contractor would be given a punch list of small items. The lobby carpet had been ordered and would be replaced prior to the Winter. Balconies and flooring still required attention. Essential work would be completed on 10 balconies prior to the Winter and the remainder of the work would be completed in Spring/Summer 2025.

Philip Miron said the Association had hired Bart Laemmel of B2 Building Science to monitor and inspect the stucco project work. Bart had been liaising with the Contractor and advising Toad and the Board. Bart would also be identifying the 10 balconies which required immediate attention and that list would be finalized in the next week.

No structural issues had been identified during the stucco project which had allowed the work to be completed on budget.

A bid had been obtained for the 3<sup>rd</sup> floor Atrium flooring and the work would be completed in 2025. Other contractors would be asked for bids and the work would be scheduled for 2025 with the start date dependent on the weather and availability of the contractor. Attempts would be made to coordinate the balcony and flooring work around the short term rentals.

Alex Summerfelt confirmed warranty repairs had been carried out on the roof in July and more work would be performed prior to Winter.

Lines would be painted in the parking garage once the work and a deep clean had been completed.

Alex Summerfelt thanked the Board for their hard work during the stucco project. Bart Laemmel had been a great asset and Alex Summerfelt was thanked for his work. Alex explained Josh Bolton lived in the building and had been very helpful during the project. Alex said CB Hot Tubs had completed hot tub refurbishments and CB Hot Tubs were doing a great job maintaining the hot tubs. Alex explained the common areas looked good and the cleaning crew had been doing a great job. Alex thanked owners for communicating with Toad and introduced Kezia who lived in the building as well as being the front office manager at Toad.

Alex confirmed all units required photo electric smoke detectors and Toad could inspect smoke detectors if required.

Water heaters needed to be replaced as necessary prior to the water heater leaking and causing damage. On demand water heaters would not work in the building. Furniture needed to be kept away from heaters.

New parking passes had been distributed to owners. Alex Summerfelt stressed the need for new parking passes to be clearly displayed as parking regulations would be enforced. Short term rental guests would have temporary parking passes issued via the rental companies. Each unit had two parking spaces at any one time. The Snowmass public parking area did not permit overnight parking and that was strictly enforced during the Winter months for snow removal. Suggestions were made for enforcement of parking, including parking patrol, and the Board would continue to discuss parking regulations.

Alex Summerfelt was active in searching for new tenants for commercial spaces within the building. Storage space, within the building, was also being made available to owners for rent. Both would be revenue sources for the Association.

Alex Summerfelt confirmed new signage would be installed around the building. The old signage had been removed during the stucco project and signage regarding bicycles in the building would be replaced.

Alex asked owners to notify Toad of any lock changes to units. Alex explained a master key system had been implemented at a significant cost to the Association and any new locks/keys had to be compatible with the master key system.

Alex said at the end of the Summer owners would be asked to identify any bikes left in the racks or storage areas. Any bikes not claimed would be removed.

Concern was expressed about guests leaving trash around the building. Specific instructions for trash disposal needed to be made available for all guests. Additional signage would be added around the building and near the dumpsters. The Town of Mt. Crested Butte needed to provide additional trash containers at the Snowmass parking lot.

Alex explained the Board had approved a 2024/2025 Budget. The operating dues had increased by 0.71% and the capital dues, for future projects, had increased by 12% making a total increase of 3.77%. Some associations had experienced significant insurance premium increases. Alex said wildfire risk in Gunnison County, BBQs and wood burning fireplaces might increase premiums in the future. The Budget line item for insurance had been increased in anticipation of a premium increase starting later in the year. Alex confirmed Toad would continue to review insurance renewal options.

Alex encouraged owners to reach out to him with Budget or financial questions. Philip Miron explained the Board reviewed all invoices over \$1,500 and closely watched expenses. Alex confirmed Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District had increased utility charges significantly and the District needed to raise funds for deferred maintenance and capital projects. Repairs & Maintenance had been increased in the Budget to address deferred maintenance.

Alex explained the 2023/2024 Budget did not include funds for capital projects and the capital project expenses had been included in the Repairs & Maintenance and General Repairs line items which pushed those line items significantly over budget. The new Budget included funds for Capital Projects. Approximately 10% of operating income would go to the Reserve during the year.

Alex confirmed there would be a separate meeting in September or October to discuss the Capital Plan and the priority of projects. The Reserve Study would be updated. Electrical panels might need to be replaced in the near future and bids were being gathered.

Concern was expressed about the dues increase and special assessments for capital projects. The dues increase would be effective September 1, 2024. Alex Summerfelt would continue to research potential income sources for the building.

Alex confirmed the roof warranty had one more year and the contractor was addressing several different issues, chimney stacks, membrane and flashing. Prior to Winter it was the intention to have any roof issues repaired.

Alex said there were no current plans to open the Front Desk. Alex explained housekeeping or maintenance requests could be coordinated by Toad and owners would be invoiced for those services.

No motion to veto the 2024/2025 Budget was made and the 2024/2025 Budget was ratified as presented.

Alex confirmed the carpet in the lobby would be replaced with commercial carpet tiles. Additional tiles had been ordered so that damaged tiles could be replaced.

Alex explained two board members were willing to continue for an additional term and two additional owners had volunteered to join the Board. The Board had suggested expanding the Board to six so all four volunteers would serve. Three board seats would be three year terms and one seat would be for a two year term to fill a vacancy on the Board. Shay Williams and Kevin Atkinson introduced themselves.

At 12:02 p.m. Allen David made a motion for a temporary adjournment for a quick board meeting. Scott Richards seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

At 12:03 p.m. Philip Miron made a motion to reopen the annual meeting. Linda seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

A motion was made to appoint Allen David, Philip Miron and Shay Williams to the Board for three year terms. The motion received a second and was unanimously approved.

Concern was expressed about the lights by the Plaza sign as the lights were very bright. It was suggested the lights be turned off later in the evening. The Board agreed to discuss.

It was suggested a portion of the garage be designated for owner parking with orange tags. It was also suggested signage be added in the garage to warn of fines and/or cameras. Alex explained additional wiring would be necessary for cameras but the Board would discuss the suggestions at a future meeting. Scott Richards said the Board was also considering cameras in the common areas.

Alex said some owners had expressed interest in storage units and Alex would reach out to those owners. A couple of units were still available.

Alex explained there was a landline for units at the base area, initiated by Vail, which the Association was paying for. Alex agreed to research and cut off the service if there were no benefits for owners or their guests.

Scott Richards said he had researched other short term rental agents and would welcome discussion with other owners. Several owners said they had switched to Vacasa and it had resulted in significantly more rentals. Nightly rental rates were discussed and Vacasa might be interested in opening the front desk if enough owners used Vacasa as their rental agent.

Concern was expressed about short term rental guests bringing dogs when only owners were allowed to have dogs. How to enforce regulations and pet fees for dogs was discussed. Good communication from owners and short term rental agents was essential.

At 12:31 p.m. Mike Englehard made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Thor Hoppess seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Prepared by Rob Harper, Toad Property Management